
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
 

Wednesday, August 3, 2016 – 7:00 p.m.  
City Hall Chambers - 8150 Barbara Avenue 

 
Chair Maggi called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Pat Simon  

Tony Scales  
Dennis Wippermann 
Luke Therrien 
Annette Maggi 
Jonathan Weber 
 

Commissioners Absent: Elizabeth Niemioja (excused) 
    Armando Lissarrague (excused) 
    Joan Robertson (excused) 
 
Others Present:  Heather Botten, Associate Planner 
     
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The July 19, 2016 Planning Commission minutes were approved as submitted. 
 
 
CLASSIC CONSTRUCTION, INC. – CASE NO. 16-28C 
 
Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for a conditional use 
permit to allow a 70 foot high flag pole whereas 67.5 feet is the maximum height in the I-2 district, 
for the property located at 11015 Clark Road.  7 notices were mailed. 
 
Presentation of Request 
Heather Botten, Associate Planner, explained the request as detailed in the report.  She advised 
that the applicant would like to install a 70 foot high flagpole to be visible from the highway 
whereas 67.5 is allowed.  Heights in excess of those allowed shall be permitted by conditional use 
permit provided such structure would not be dangerous and would not adversely affect adjoining or 
adjacent property.  Staff recommends approval of the request with the two conditions listed in the 
report.  Staff did not hear from any surrounding property owners.  
 
Opening of Public Hearing 
Spencer Dally, 7649 Concord Boulevard, advised he was available to answer any questions. 
 
Chair Maggi asked the applicant if he read and understood the report. 
 
Mr. Dally replied in the affirmative. 
 
Chair Maggi closed the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
Motion by Commissioner Wippermann, second by Commissioner Simon, to approve the request for 
a conditional use permit to allow a 70 foot high flag pole whereas 67.5 feet is the maximum height 
in the I-2 district, for the property located at 11015 Clark Road, with the conditions listed in the 
report.   
 
Motion carried (6/0). This item goes to the City Council on August 8, 2016. 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 2 
August 3, 2016 
 
 
 
 
SARJU IGH, LLC – CASE NO. 16-33PRC 
 
Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for a major site plan 
approval to construct a four-story hotel, a conditional use permit to exceed the maximum height 
allowance for a building in the B-3 zoning district, a conditional use permit to exceed the maximum 
allowed impervious surface in the Shoreland Overlay District, and a variance from the front setback 
requirements, for property located at 5448 South Robert Trail.  5 notices were mailed. 
 
Presentation of Request 
Heather Botten, Associate Planner, explained the request as detailed in the report.  She advised 
that the property is located on the corner of 54th Street and Alta Avenue and is zoned B-3, General 
Business.  The applicant is proposing to build a 77-unit four-story hotel.  The request meets the 
general site plan review and conditional use permit criteria.  Access would be via a private drive off 
of 54th Street.  The property is located in the Shoreland Overlay District which limits the entire site 
to a maximum 25% impervious surface.  This may be exceeded by conditional use permit provided 
the City has approved and implemented a stormwater management plan for the property.  As 
proposed the site would be at about 75% impervious.  The B-3 district does not have any 
impervious requirements but would be regulated by the Shoreland Overlay District.  Engineering 
must approve a grading and stormwater management plan prior to any work commencing on the 
site.  Height in excess of that allowed by the code is also permitted by conditional use permit 
providing that such structure would not be dangerous and would not adversely affect adjoining or 
adjacent property.  The property is surrounded by commercial development to the north, west, and 
south and multi-family to the east.  Staff does not believe the additional height of the proposed 
structure would be dangerous or have any adverse affect on the neighborhood.  The variance 
being requested for the parking setback does not appear to have an adverse impact on the 
neighboring properties.  Staff believes a practical difficulty can be found due to the challenging 
topography of the lot and the fact that the property is encompassed by three roads which limits the 
buildable area.  Staff recommends approval of the requests with the nine conditions listed.  Staff 
has not heard from any of the surrounding property owners. 
 
Chair Maggi asked if the vast majority of properties within the Shoreland Overlay District complied 
with the 25% impervious surface maximum. 
 
Ms. Botten replied they had not looked at which individual lots were in compliance and which were 
not; however, she believed most commercial/industrial properties were likely not in compliance.     
 
Commissioner Simon stated 75% impervious surface seemed high and asked if staff was aware of 
any properties with 50-75% impervious in the Shoreland Overlay District. 
 
Ms. Botten replied in the affirmative, stating it was not an uncommon percentage.   
 
Commissioner Simon asked if a sidewalk was proposed.   
 
Ms. Botten replied not that she was aware of. 
 
Chair Maggi asked if that was a requirement. 
 
Ms. Botten offered to look into it, but believed it was not a requirement for a commercial 
development.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 3 
August 3, 2016 
 
 
Commissioner Simon asked if an access agreement was needed for the private road.   
 
Ms. Botten replied in the affirmative.   
 
Commissioner Simon asked if the height would be an issue for the airport. 
 
Ms. Botten replied it would not. 
 
Commissioner Simon asked who would receive complaints if there were any issues with the private 
stormwater system. 
 
Ms. Botten replied that any issues could be reported to the City, who would go out and inspect the 
problem.  She advised that the private system was shared by all the property owners in the 
Heartland Credit Union Addition and they were required to do yearly reports to ensure the 
stormwater facilities were being maintained properly.     
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the DNR reviewed or commented on the request. 
 
Ms. Botten replied that the DNR was notified but had not yet provided comment.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the DNR always provided comment. 
 
Ms. Botten replied not always, especially knowing that the City requires a stormwater management 
plan.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked where the stormwater basin would be located. 
 
Ms. Botten replied that the applicant could address the exact location, but she believed it was on 
the property immediately south of the subject property.  She added that the Engineering 
Department will be approving that and working with the applicant to get final grades, final plans, 
etc. 
 
Chair Maggi asked if there was a condition of approval requiring that be complete.   
 
Ms. Botten replied in the affirmative   
 
Opening of Public Hearing 
Hemant Bhakta, 2020 Wilson Avenue, South St. Paul, advised he was available to answer any 
questions.   
 
Chair Maggi asked the applicant if he read and understood the report. 
 
Mr. Bhakta replied in the affirmative.   
 
Commissioner Scales was concerned about parking, stating there were only four parking spaces 
designated for employees.   
 
Mr. Bhakta replied that most of the employees would be there during the daytime when the hotel 
was fairly empty, with only two employees working in the evenings.     
 
Commissioner Scales stated he was familiar with what it takes to run a hotel and believed the 
applicant would struggle with parking when they were at capacity.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 4 
August 3, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Bhakta advised he planned to speak with Heartland Credit Union regarding possible shared 
parking should they ever be short parking spaces.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if they had decided on a hotel brand yet. 
 
Mr. Bhakta replied he had not.    
 
Chair Maggi closed the public hearing. 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation  
Motion by Commissioner Scales, second by Commissioner Weber, to approve the request for a 
major site plan approval to construct a four-story hotel, a conditional use permit to exceed the 
maximum height allowance for a building in the B-3 zoning district, a conditional use permit to 
exceed the maximum allowed impervious surface in the Shoreland Overlay District, and a variance 
from the front setback requirements, for property located at 5448 South Robert Trail, with the 
conditions listed in the report. 
 
Motion carried (6/0).  This item goes to the City Council on August 22, 2016.   
 
 
The meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Kim Fox  
Recording Secretary 


